
Notice and Agenda of a Meeting of the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

 

Wednesday, October 3, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

 

Meeting Location: 
 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, California 92223 
(951) 845-9581 

Watermaster Members: 
 

City of Banning 
City of Beaumont 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
South Mesa Water Company 

Yucaipa Valley Water District 
 

 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

City of Banning:  Arturo Vela (Alternate: Luis Cardenas) 

City of Beaumont:  Amer Jakher (Alternate: Kyle Warsinski) 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District:  Daniel Jaggers (Alternate: Mark Swanson) 

South Mesa Water Company:  George Jorritsma (Alternate: Dave Armstrong) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District:  Joseph Zoba (Alternate: Jennifer Ares) 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Public Comments   At this time, members of the public may address the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

on matters within its jurisdiction; however, no action or discussion may take place on any item not on the 
agenda.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete a Request to Speak form and provide 
that form to the Secretary prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

V. Correspondence 

A. Correspondence dated September 26, 2018 from Yucaipa Valley Water District - 
Transfer of 29.57 Acre Feet of Overlying Water Rights in the Beaumont Basin for Tract 
No. 32702-3 (80 lots) Pursuant to Beaumont Basin Watermaster Resolution No. 

2017-02 [Page 3 of 39] 

VI. Consent Calendar 

A. Meeting Minutes 

1. Meeting Minutes for August 1, 2018 [Page 6 of 39] 

VII. Reports 

A. Report from Engineering Consultant - Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Engineering 

B. Report from Hydrogeological Consultant - Thomas Harder, Thomas Harder & Co. 

C. Report from Legal Counsel - Keith McCullough/Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 

VIII. Discussion Items 

A. Independent Accountant’s Financial Report of Agreed-Upon Procedures for the 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster [Memorandum No. 18-18, Page 13 of 39] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee receives and files the 

Independent Accountant’s Financial Report for the period ending June 30, 
2018. 

  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 1 of 39



  

B. Status Report on Water Level Monitoring throughout the Beaumont Basin through 
September 25, 2018 [Memorandum No. 18-19, Page 19 of 39] 

Recommendation:  No recommendation. 

C. Comparative Groundwater Production and Allowable Extractions through August 

2018 [Memorandum No. 18-20, Page 29 of 39] 

Recommendation:  No recommendation.  Informational Purposes Only 

D. Consideration of Task Order No. 17 with ALDA Inc. for the Development of a Return 

Flow Methodology for the Beaumont Basin [Memorandum No. 18-21, Page 30 of 39] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approve Task Order No. 

17 as a Special Project Expense for a sum not to exceed $40,140 and direct 
the Treasurer to invoice specific Appropriators based on anticipated benefit. 

E. Discussion Regarding the Perfection of Appropriative Rights Following the Conversion 

of Overlying Water Rights to Appropriative Rights [Memorandum No. 18-22, Page 35 
of 39] 

Recommendation:  Pending. 

IX. Topics for Future Meetings 

A. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield from capturing 

local stormwater in the basin. 

B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater storage losses 

in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional water sources.  

C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled water recharge. 

D. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data reported to the 
Watermaster. 

E. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 

Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party.  

F. Discussion of Overlyer return flow credit and how it might be managed 

X. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 

XI. Announcements 

A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is scheduled for 

Wednesday, December 5, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. 

XII. Adjournment 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 2 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 3 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 3 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 4 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 4 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 5 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 5 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 1 OF 7 
 

DRAFT  
Record of the Minutes of the  

Beaumont Basin Committee Meeting of the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, August 1, 2018  

 
Meeting Location: 

 
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, CA  92223 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chairman Arturo Vela called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m. 

 
II. Roll Call 

 
City of Banning Arturo Vela Present 
City of Beaumont Amer Jakher Present 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District Daniel Jaggers Present 
South Mesa Water Company George Jorritsma Present 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Joseph Zoba Present 

 
Thierry Montoya was present representing legal counsel for the Beaumont 
Basin Watermaster. 
 
Tom Harder and Hanibal Blandon were present as consultants and engineers 
for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 
 
Staff present were: Mark Swanson, Bill Clayton, James Bean and Erica 
Gonzales from BCVWD. 
 
Members of the public who registered or attended were: Fran Flanders, Ashley 
Gibson, David Fenn, and Luis Cardenas. 
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Chairman Vela led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

IV. Public Comments: None. 
 
V. Correspondence:  

 
A. Correspondence dated July 27, 2018 from Yucaipa Valley Water 

District - Transfer of 59.89 Acre Feet of Overlying Water Rights in the 
Beaumont Basin for Tract Nos. 32702-1 (121 lots) and 32702-2 (41 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 6 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 6 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 2 OF 7 
 

lots) Pursuant to Beaumont Basin Watermaster Resolution No. 2017-
02 
 
Mr. Zoba indicated this correspondence has been before the 
Committee previously. No action is required.  
 

VI. Consent Calendar 
 

It was moved by Member Jakher and seconded by Member Jorritsma to 
approve the Meeting Minutes of the following dates: 

 
1. Meeting Minutes for June 6, 2018 

 
AYES: Jaggers, Jakher, Jorritsma, Vela, Zoba 
NOES: None. 
ABSTAIN: None. 
ABSENT: None. 
STATUS: Motion Approved 

 
VII. Reports 

 
A. Report from Engineering Consultant – Tom Harder, ALDA Engineering 

 
Mr. Harder presented a Powerpoint on Developing Methodology to 
Account for Return Flow Recharge. He pointed out that return flow is 
included in the water budget for the Beaumont Basin and is part of the 
safe yield. He addressed the interest in crediting return flow that occurs 
on overlying appropriator service areas to the appropriators; a parcel-
by-parcel estimate would need to be made. 
 
Mr. Harder also presented information on basin losses. 
 
Mr. Harder reported on comment received regarding the report on basin 
losses. The City of Banning asked about recharge, and Mr. Harder noted 
the bulk water in question recharged at the Noble Creek facility is 
accounted for in the model; recharge elsewhere in the basin is not. The 
purpose of the memo was to provide a magnitude of losses and what 
affects losses, then develop a method to account for the loss. Additional 
analysis can be done.  
 
Another question, stated Mr. Harder, was whether irrigation return flows 
should be accounted for and if it impacts losses. He said they should, 
but they are minor. As return flows increase in the basin, those losses 
will increase.  
 
The final question, Mr. Harder noted, was regarding wells outside the 
adjudicated area and whether those affect the losses. There is some 
hydrologic separation between the Beaumont Basin and the Banning 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 7 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 7 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 3 OF 7 
 

Basin but losses are affected by a combination of activities on either side 
including increased pumping. To limit losses may involve some 
coordination.  
 
Mr. Harder indicated he would like to finalize the Tech Memo and 
reminded everyone about submitting comments.  
 
Mr. Jaggers reiterated that activities could be tailored to minimize 
losses: how much to recharge, how conjunctive use is done, and how 
pumping is managed. BCVWD has the ability to pump and deliver to 
other areas including Banning, and in the future to Yucaipa, to minimize 
losses. He said he views the Tech Memo as a general view of the basin 
and tool to assist agencies in tuning their activities to minimize loss and 
monitor it over time. He noted that too much recharge in one spot 
creates a condition of loss. 
 
Chairman Vela indicated future discussion would be needed on what is 
to be done and how to implement. 
 
Engineer Blandon added that at this point, monitoring wells are lacking 
in key locations, and at some point, more will be needed to better 
understand the loss.  
 
 

B. Report from Legal Counsel – Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 
 

Legal Counsel Thierry Montoya advised that a court hearing is set on 
September 17 for the appointment of BCVWD’s alternate member, Mark 
Swanson.  
 
Mr. Montoya reported that counsel has researched the transfer of 
overlying rights to an appropriator. As a matter of the agreement, and 
of law, the overlying right is culminated then switched to an 
appropriative right. Counsel looked at the concept of when the 
appropriative right “perfects,” and becomes an appropriative right put 
to beneficial use for that party, it would not be subject to another 
appropriator’s claims for all or a portion of the former overlying right 
because of non-use.   
 

VIII. Discussion Items 
 
A. Status Report on Water Level Monitoring throughout the Beaumont 

Basin through July 24, 2018   
 
Recommendation:  No recommendation. 
 

Engineer Hannibal Blandon reported that 14 wells are currently being 
monitored. New wells are being sought in the central western portion of 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 8 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 8 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 4 OF 7 
 

the basin. Some issues with vandalism have been experienced at 
Yucaipa Well 34, and at Well 5, the cable is stuck but continues to record 
data. He noted that graphs show data interruption for Yucaipa 34 and 
Oak Valley 35.  
 
Mr. Blandon gave an overview of the graphs. He updated the Committee 
on the search for additional monitoring well sites and advised there may 
be an opportunity to bring back observation well Banning 8 if the City 
pulls the pump. The loss of probes at Yucaipa 34 appears to be theft: 
cables cut and probe removed. The lock has been replaced and security 
added. 
 
Chairman Vela noted that City of Banning plans to relocate Joshua 
Palmer Way in the next four to six months will affect the Banning 15 
monitoring well near the Chevron station.  
  

B. Comparison of Production and Allowable Extractions through June 2018 

Recommendation:  No recommendation. Information only. 

Engineer Blandon reviewed the report. There is a total production right 
of about 12,000 acre-feet and a total of 5,241 acre-feet was produced; 
an overall average of 43 percent of the allowable right. 

 

C. Discussion Regarding the Perfection of Appropriative Rights Following 
the Conversion of Overlying Water Rights to Appropriative Rights 
 

Recommendation:  No recommendation. 
 

Legal Counsel Thierry Montoya continued discussion regarding the 
transfer of overlying rights to an appropriator, pointing out the example 
of Yucaipa Valley WD (YVWD) and Oak Valley’s transfer. The issue is 
that Oak Valley has transferred its overlying rights to Yucaipa, so that 
YVWD can then provide water service to a phased residential 
community. Such use would be a beneficial use, and would perfect the 
appropriative right once all or relative chunks of the formerly overlying 
water right are used to provide water service to the residential 
development. This is clear under case law. 

The key is that the appropriative right is perfected when the water is 
applied to a beneficial use, and the appropriative right would vest upon 
the completion of the last act; in this instance YVWD beginning to send 
out water for household use.  

Then, if the project is not entirely built out, or if it is built in phases but 
with large gaps of time, Mr. Montoya posited that the water is ready to 
be put to beneficial use but has not yet been perfected. There is no 
statutory or common-law requirement relative to the length of time that 
the water must be used to accrue a right. In the SWRCB permitted 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 9 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 9 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 5 OF 7 
 

transfers of appropriative right, they impose a five-year non-use period, 
then if the right is not used it is up for another appropriator to say they 
need it. Then the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) would 
have a hearing to determine whether there is non-use, whether the five-
year rule may apply or whether there are any factors to extend the five-
year rule.  

 

Everyone has correlative rights for the benefit of sharing the basin, and 
it is all subject to beneficial usage. Using that as guidance, the five-year 
rule is something the Committee may want to consider including these 
types of contract terms in transfers in the future.  

Mr. Montoya advised that although there is no hard and fast rule, the 
Committee must be mindful of this area of equitable consideration. 
Regarding the example of Oak Valley,  YVWD is beginning to perfect 
some rights but if there is indication of activity on the project and the 
rights may be perfected in time, law would say that if the equitable 
evidence is convincing then they should be provided additional time.  

For accounting purposes, Counsel Montoya suggested a column of 
quantity transferred and a column of perfected appropriative rights (the 
date it is put to use). 

Member Jorritsma asked about specification of certain parcels. Mr. 
Montoya said he believes it is not meaningful that the water must go to 
a particular parcel. Member Jaggers asked for clarification of “beneficial 
use.” Counsel Montoya stated that case law defines beneficial use as 
when it is actually perfected and applied to beneficial use. Chairman 
Vela suggested it could be perfected when the meter is dropped in the 
box. Member Jaggers pointed out the landscape of water use is changing 
with recent bills to reduce water supply both outdoors and indoors. 
BCVWD will be using a conservative approach to analyze water use to 
avoid coming up short. If not accurately accounted for, that may provide 
an opportunity for agencies to question. Counsel Montoya concurred, 
noting the perfection is upon completion of the last act, which is 
application of water to a beneficial use in the amount that is equivalent 
to the maximum quantity actually put to a beneficial use. Therefore, if 
water remains in the appropriative column for a time that is deemed by 
parties to be too long before it is actually perfected and vests, then other 
appropriators can say they want some of that water.  

Member Jaggers shared an example of a developer holding more overlier 
right than the District believes necessary for their project. Mr. Montoya 
indicated he believes the District could make a deal with the developer 
to take all the overlying right as the property has other potential uses, 
which must be accounted for. If the uses do not come to fruition over a 
period, other appropriators could say those unperfected rights may be 
put to beneficial use now. Jaggers suggested a concept that the 
unconsumed appropriative right goes into a pool, which would then be 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 10 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 10 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 6 OF 7 
 

reallocated in a manner similar to the adjudication, therefore providing 
beneficial use.  

Counsel Montoya agreed the foundation for such transfers is in the 
judgment, and it makes sense to firm up these concepts now via 
discussion between appropriators. 

Member Zoba indicated he has always viewed the Watermaster as an 
accounting firm for these types of transfers. He pointed to a concept in 
the stipulated judgment that there would be a conversion of overlying 
to appropriative rights and these are now coming about. He postulated 
that the SWRCB policy does not apply to the Watermaster at all and a 
five-year plan should not be considered.  

Mr. Zoba pointed to Engineer Blandon’s chart presented earlier and 
reminded the members that correspondence presented to the 
Committee in March included the overlying party committing to YVWD 
to forever forgo pumping and extracting that overlying right. In favor of 
that, YVWD made commitments to make sure that there will be water 
for the property when it develops, when it occurs. When the transfer 
occurred in March, YVWD immediately put that water to an appropriative 
use, which is shown on the chart as extracted and consumed in 2018 in 
the YVWD service area. There is nothing in the adjudication that says 
that appropriative right must be used on that specific property. 
Appropriative water may be used anywhere within the service area, not 
just within the Beaumont Basin.   

The correspondence today, Zoba continued, transfers another 60 acre-
feet to YVWD, which will be used. That perfects the transfer of overlying 
to appropriative rights. The five year policy makes no sense, he stated, 
and advised that flexibility must be maintained. He said he does not 
believe the memo from legal counsel applies, and YVWD has perfected 
the rights transferred to it and stands to successfully manage the right 
as stored water or used water. He requested modification of the memo.  

Counsel Montoya reiterated there is no statutory time limit for use. The 
SWRCB five-year limit does not apply in this case, but it was the closest 
example of time guidance. The intent of these cases is to allow flexibility 
to the appropriate party due to equitable consideration for time, types 
of use, manner of use, and what has occurred over time.  

Member Zoba also pointed out that developers provide water rights in 
lieu of Developer Impact Fees for water supply, and if the right is instead 
allocated to a pool, then YVWD incurs a financial loss.  

Mr. Jaggers indicated the goal is to establish a process, as uses will 
change over time. Counsel Montoya advised members to assure 
flexibility for use when drafting transfer agreements. Member Vela 
suggested discussion on how the transfer modifies the exhibits within 
the adjudication, as the recalculation of safe yield is coming soon.  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 11 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 11 of 39



 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER – COMMITTEE MINUTES 2018-08-01 PAGE 7 OF 7 
 

Member Jahker noted that some developments take a long time, and 
concurred with Member Zoba’s prior comments.  

Chairman Vela concluded the discussion, requesting Mr. Montoya revise 
the memo. It will be revised after Mr. Montoya returns from vacation 
later in August, and sent out for comment. 

 

IX. Topics for Future Meetings 
 

A. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield 
from capturing local stormwater in the basin 

B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater 
storage losses in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional 
water sources 

C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled 
water recharge 

D. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data 
reported to the Watermaster 

E. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when 
an Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party 

F. Discussion of Overlier return flow credit and how it might be managed 
G. GIS system 

 
X. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 

 
Chair Vela welcomed Mr. Mark Swanson. 
 

XI. Announcements 
 

A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is 
scheduled for Wednesday, October 3, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

XII. Adjournment 
 
Chairman Vela adjourned the meeting at 11:24 a.m. 

 
 

Attest: 
 
DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED 

_____________________________ 
Daniel Jaggers, Secretary 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 12 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 12 of 39



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 18-18 

 
Date: October 3, 2018 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Independent Accountant’s Financial Report of Agreed-Upon 

Procedures for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee receives and files the 

Independent Accountant’s Financial Report for the period ending 
June 30, 2018. 

 

 
The Beaumont Basin Watermaster engaged the firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody & 
Scott to perform an independent financial review of the Watermaster activities for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  The independent financial review was conducted under 
the same terms and scope as the prior fiscal year. 
 
At the beginning of the 2017-2018 fiscal year, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster had an 
unrestricted net position of $189,260.  During the fiscal year, the Watermaster collected 
$190,963 in revenues and expended $245,040.  As of June 30, 2018, the Watermaster 
had unrestricted net position of $135,183.   
 
The following illustration provides a summary of the annual revenues and expenses of 
the Beaumont Basin Watermaster since its formation in 2004. 
 

 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

F
Y

 2
0

0
4

F
Y

 2
0

0
5

F
Y

 2
0

0
6

F
Y

 2
0

0
7

F
Y

 2
0

0
8

F
Y

 2
0

0
9

F
Y

 2
0

1
0

F
Y

 2
0

1
1

F
Y

 2
0

1
2

F
Y

 2
0

1
3

F
Y

 2
0

1
4

F
Y

 2
0

1
5

F
Y

 2
0

1
6

F
Y

 2
0

1
7

F
Y

 2
0

1
8

Annual Revenue

Annual Expense

Linear (Annual Revenue)

Linear (Annual Expense)

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 13 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 13 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-18 Page 2 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 14 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 14 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-18 Page 3 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 15 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 15 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-18 Page 4 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 16 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 16 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-18 Page 5 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 17 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 17 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-18 Page 6 of 6 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 18 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 18 of 39



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 18-19 

 
Date: October 3, 2018 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc. 
 
Subject: Status Report on Water Level Monitoring throughout the 

Beaumont Basin through September 25, 2018 
 
Recommendation: No recommendation. 
 

 
At the present time, there are 14 monitoring wells collecting water level information on an 
hourly basis at various locations throughout the basin.  In addition, there are two 
monitoring probes collecting barometric pressures at opposite ends of the Beaumont 
Basin.  The location of active monitoring wells is depicted in the attached Figure No. 1. 

Water levels at selected locations are depicted in Figures 2 through 6 and are described 
as follows: 

✓ Figure No. 2 - Water levels at YVWD Well No. 34 and Oak Valley Well No. 5 are 
considered representative of basin conditions in the Northwest portion of the basin.  
Water levels at YVWD No. 34 were not recorded between July 2017 and July 2018 
due to several reasons including faulty equipment and repeated vandalism.  Over 
the last two months a new probe was installed and the security at this location was 
enhanced.  Since July 2017 the water level at this well declined by four feet to 
2,142 ft in elevation.   

✓ At Oak Valley No. 5 - The water level probe stopped recording on March 20, 2018, 
but we were not aware of this condition since we had difficulties removing the probe 
from the well.  The probe was removed during our last visit and the data 
downloaded; however, the data stored over the last six months proved to be 
inconsistent at best.  A new probe will be installed at this location. 

✓ Figure No. 3 - Two of the Noble Creek observation wells are presented in this figure 
representing the shallow and deep aquifers.  In the shallow aquifer, the water level 
has increased close to 85 feet over the last 18 months from a low of 2,337 ft. to 
2,422 ft., recorded at the end of July 2018.  Levels in the deep aquifer have risen 
recently to their highest elevation (2,274 ft) since the summer of 2015.   

✓ Figure No. 4 - Southern Portion of the Basin.  Water level at the Summit Cemetery 
well is highly influenced by a nearby pumping well that is used to irrigate the 
cemetery grounds.  The water level at this well continues to fluctuate over a 20-
foot band.  Conversely, the water level at the Sun Lakes well has fluctuated 
minimally over the same period as it decreased one foot.   

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 19 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 19 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 2 of 10 

✓ Figure No. 5 - This figure illustrates levels at three wells owned by the City of 
Banning in the Southeast portion of the basin.  While water level at the Old Well 
No. 15 (Chevron Well) has been fairly flat over the last two years, a somewhat 
significant and steady decline, close to 23 feet, has been recorded at Banning M-
8.  The probe at Banning M-8 was removed during our visit in late January 2018 
as there seems to be an obstruction in the well at a depth of approximately 350 ft 
below ground.  City staff has indicated that the pump at this well will be pulled later 
this year at which time we may have an opportunity to use this well again. Water 
level at Banning M-9, recorded at an elevation of 2,127 ft, is at the lowest elevation 
since the monitoring program began in 2015.  The water level at this location has 
declined by 17 ft over the last six months. 

✓ Figure No. 6 - This figure illustrates recorded water level at BCVWD No. 2 and the 
new monitoring well BCVWD No. 25.  Over the last two years, the level at BCVWD 
No. 2 has increased by over 20 feet topping in May 2017 at an elevation of 2,218 
ft.; current water level is slightly lower. Water level at BCVWD No. 25 were in sync 
with BCVWD No. 2 until production at this well (25) started in April 2018 when the 
well pumped up to 18 hours per day during non-TOU hours.  Daily values shown 
in this graph after April 2018 indicate the average value during a 24-hour period 
including pumping and non-pumping hours.  Figure 6A provides a better indicator 
of static water levels at BCVWD No. 25 since daily values recorded at 5:00 PM 
were used to reflect a static condition.  

New Equipment Installation 

✓ Oak Valley No. 5 – A new monitoring probe will be installed at this location this 
afternoon. 

Troubleshooting Issues 

The following malfunctioning issues were encountered during our September 25, 2018 
field visit: 
 

✓ BCVWD No. 2 – Communications cable did not work during the September visit.  
Communications cable may need to be replaced. 

✓ Oak Valley No. 5 – Communications cable and probe are not working.  The probe 
will be replaced this afternoon and potentially a new communications cable 
installed.  

✓ The new water level meter may need to be sent to Solinst for repairs as the cable 
was peeled when BCVWD No. 2 was being measured.  This cut is making the 
water level alarm to sound inconsistently as it beeps even when the water level 
probe is out of the ground. 

 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 20 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 20 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 3 of 10 

New Monitoring Sites 

• The property owned by the Catholic Dioceses of San Bernardino-Riverside 
counties, near Rancho Calimesa Mobile Home Park has three abandoned wells.  
Two of these wells cannot be used at this time because the probe could not be 
lowered; however, the third site has great potential.  This well is approximately 400 
ft deep and the water level is at approximately 160 feet below ground.  
 

Potential New Monitoring Sites 

Potential new monitoring sites include: 

• Sharondale Home Owner Association wells  

• Rancho Calimesa Mobile Home Park 

• Desert Lawn 

• Sunny Cal Ranch Area 

• Plantation by the Lake well 
 

New Equipment Requirements 

• May need to replace communications cable at BCVWD No. 2 well. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 21 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 21 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 4 of 10 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 22 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 22 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 5 of 10 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 23 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 23 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 6 of 10 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 24 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 24 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 7 of 10 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 25 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 25 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 8 of 10 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 26 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 26 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 9 of 10 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 27 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 27 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-19 Page 10 of 10 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 28 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 28 of 39



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 18-20 

 
Date: October 3, 2018 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc. 
 
Subject: Comparative Groundwater Production and Allowable Extractions 

through August 2018 
 
Recommendation: No recommendation.  Informational Purposes Only 
 

 
The purpose of this Technical Memorandum is to present a comparison of production rights from 
the basin against actual production by Appropriators.  Production rights consist of the sum of 
Unused Production by Overlying Users from 2013 transferred to Appropriators for 2018 and 
Imported Water Spreading.  This sum is compared against actual production through August 
2018.  
 
During the first eight months of the year a total of 9,040 ac-ft of water were produced from the 
basin by the Appropriators while 8,059 ac-ft of imported water were spread at the Noble Creek 
spreading grounds.  Unused production by Overlying users for 2013 was estimated at 6,365 ac-
ft.   
 
The table below presents the above comparison for all Appropriators; all numbers shown in ac-ft, 
except as noted.  
 

 City of 
Banning 

Beaumont 
Cherry 
Valley 
Water 

District 

South 
Mesa 

Mutual 
Water 

Company 

Yucaipa 
Valley 
Water 

District 

Total 

Transfer of Overlying 
Rights from 2013 

2,001 2,706 794 864 6,365 

Imported Water 
Spreading Activities 

395 7,664 0 0 8,059 

Total 2,396 10,370 794 864 14,424 

      

2018 Year-to-Date 
Production 

1,061 7,653 234 92.1 9,040 

% of Total 44.3% 73.8% 29.5% 10.7% 62.7% 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 29 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 29 of 39



 

 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 18-21 

 
Date: October 3, 2018 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Consideration of Task Order No. 17 with ALDA Inc. for the 

Development of a Return Flow Methodology for the Beaumont 
Basin 

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee approve Task Order No. 17 as 

a Special Project Expense for a sum not to exceed $40,140 and 
direct the Treasurer to invoice specific Appropriators based on 
anticipated benefit. 

 

 

Over the past several months, the Watermaster Committee members have been 
discussing the development of a return flow methodology for the Beaumont Basin.  
 
In the 2013 Reevaluation of the Beaumont Basin Safe Yield, return flows were estimated 
based on overall land use factors.  The current approach, as discussed in previous 
Watermaster meetings, considers using the actual amount of water delivered to individual 
parcels within the basin, as available in GIS format.  The development of this methodology 
will result in a more accurate accounting of return flows by Appropriator. 
 
The financial impacts associated with the proposed contract would result in an additional 
expense of $40,140.  If approved, the Treasurer will divide the expense equally between 
Appropriators anticipated to receive a benefit from the development of this methodology. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 30 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 30 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-21 Page 2 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 31 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 31 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-21 Page 3 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 32 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 32 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-21 Page 4 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 33 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 33 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-21 Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 34 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 34 of 39



 

 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 18-22 

 
Date: October 3, 2018 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding the Perfection of Appropriative Rights 

Following the Conversion of Overlying Water Rights to 
Appropriative Rights  

 
Recommendation: Pending. 
 

 
On August 1, 2018, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Committee members reviewed a 
draft memorandum regarding the timing for perfection of appropriative rights following the 
transfer and conversion of overlying water rights [BBWM Memorandum No. 18-17].  At 
this meeting, the Watermaster Committee members requested revisions to the draft 
document. 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an opportunity for legal counsel to discuss 
this topic in greater detail with the Watermaster Committee. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 35 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 35 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-22 Page 2 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 36 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 36 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-22 Page 3 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 37 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 37 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-22 Page 4 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 38 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 38 of 39



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 18-22 Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 39 of 39Beaumont Basin Watermaster - October 3, 2018 - Page 39 of 39




